JRPP No.	2010HCC015
DA No.	DA/771/2010
Proposed Development	3 into 80 Lot Residential Subdivision
Address	Lot 465 DP 774186, 15 Denman Way, Booragul
	Lot 466 DP 774186, 24 Park Parade, Booragul
	Lot 468 DP 774186, 79 Marmong Street, Booragul
	Lot 7024 DP 1053038, 81B Marmong Street, Booragul
Applicant	Adam Crampton – ADW Johnson
Owner	Empowered Living Support Services (Lots 465, 466 &
	486) & Land and Property Management Authority (Lot
	7024)
Report By:	David Pavitt (Lake Macquarie City Council)

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015

Table of Contents

1	PRECIS	1
2	PROJECT DESCRIPTION	2
	Location	2
	Surrounding Development	3
	Subdivision Layout	4
3	SECTION 79C EVALUATION	5
	79C(1)(a)(i) the provisions of any Environment Planning Instrument	5
	79C(1)(a)(ii) the provisions of any draft EPI	13
	79C(1)(a)(iii) the provisions of any Development Control Plan (DCP)	14
	79C(1)(a)(iiia) any planning agreement that has been entered into	20
	79C(1)(a)(iv) any matters prescribed by the regulations	20
	79C(1)(b) the likely impacts of the development	20
	79C(1)(c) the suitability of the site for development	20
	79C(1)(d) any submissions made in accordance with this Act or the Regulations	20
	79C(1)(e) the public interest	21
	Mine Subsidence Compensation Act 19612	
	Rural Fires Act 1997	22
	Water Management Act 2000	22
2	SECTION 94 CONTRIBUTIONS	22
3	CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION	22
A	PPENDIX A – Condition of Consent	23

Error! No table of figures entries found.

1 PRECIS

The development application lodged by ADW Johnson Pty Ltd is seeking development consent for a proposed 3 into 80 lot residential subdivision. The proposal comprises of 80 residential lots in 5 stages. The application also includes the creation of drainage easements & associated drainage works over the adjacent Crown land.

The site is zoned 2(1) Residential under Lake Macquarie Local Environmental Plan 2004 (LM LEP 2004).

The proposal is Integrated Development pursuant to the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 and is in a "Sensitive Coastal Location" as defined in State Environmental Planning Policy 71 – Coastal Protection.

The site was previously a Housing NSW public housing development that has subsequently been demolished. As such, the site has little native vegetation.

2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Location

The site is located adjacent to existing residential development at Booragul and is zoned 2(1) Residential. A Council owned Public Reserve is located to the southwest and a Crown owned Reserve is located to the south (see Figure 3). The Crown land forms part of the development application as easements and associated storm water pipe works are proposed on the Crown land. The development site is approximately 6.5 ha in area

The site has frontages to Marmong Street, Park Parade and Denman Way. Vehicular access to the site is currently available from Park Parade and Denman Way.

The land falls from a ridge at the north towards a wetland at the south. The wetland is identified on the Department of Planning's Maps as a Coastal Wetland under the provisions of State Environmental Planning Policy 14 – Coastal Wetlands. Site slopes range up to 15% with much of the site at 10% slope or flatter. Vegetation cover consists mainly of kikuyu grass with some remnant trees. A minor watercourse crosses the site in the south western corner.

In 1979 the site was developed by Housing NSW for a medium density housing estate that contained approximately 114 dwellings. The development experienced vandalism and on-going social problems and was subsequently demolished in 2002.

The site currently has Development Consents for a nursing home and an associated 51 dwelling retirement village.



Figure 1 – Locality Plan

Surrounding Development

The site sits on the eastern side of the Booragul community and enjoys a close proximity to many facilities such as public and private high schools, primary school, art gallery and a marina.

Figure 1 provides a location plan for the development and shows the local schools and shopping centre.

Figure 2 shows an aerial photograph of the site and Figure 3 is an extract from the zoning maps contained in the Lake Macquarie Local Environment Plan 2004.



Figure 2 – Aerial view of site.



Figure 3 – LMLEP 2004 Zoning Plan

Subdivision Layout

The subdivision layout creates 80 lots in five stages. The layout is in a "grid" pattern and access to the development is via the existing road network. Figure 4 shows the proposed subdivision layout and stage boundaries.



Figure 4 – Proposed Subdivision Layout

3 SECTION 79C EVALUATION

79C(1)(a)(i) the provisions of any Environment Planning Instrument

State Environmental Planning Policies (SEPP)

SEPP14 - Coastal Wetlands

The Crown Reserve that adjoins the development site and where some drainage works are proposed, is partly mapped as a SEPP 14 Wetland. Due to the scale of the SEPP 14 Wetland Maps, it is the usual practice for representatives of Council and the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water (DECCW) to undertake a site survey to clearly delineate the edge of the wetland. That survey took place on 7 August 2008 and the limit of the wetland is shown in Figure 5.

There are no works proposed within the SEPP 14 Coastal Wetland and as such concurrence is not required.

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015



Figure 5 - SEPP 14 Wetland

SEPP19 Bushland in Urban Areas

The Crown Reserve that adjoins the development site and where some drainage works are proposed is zoned 6(1) Open Space and is also bushland. As such Clause 6 of SEPP 19 - *Consent to disturb bushland zoned or reserved for public open space* must be taken in to account. Sub clause (4) requires the consent authority to not consent to the carrying out the development unless:

- (a) it has made an assessment of the need to protect and preserve the bushland having regard to the aims of this Policy,
- (b) it is satisfied that the disturbance of the bushland is essential for a purpose in the public interest and no reasonable alternative is available to the disturbance of that bushland, and

(c) it is satisfied that the amount of bushland proposed to be disturbed is as little as possible and, where bushland is disturbed to allow construction work to be carried out, the bushland will be reinstated upon completion of that work as far as is possible.

In this instance, the level of disturbance that may occur would be small and would be limited to the laying of drainage pipes. These pipes are proposed to be in a similar location as the existing pipes. Providing drainage in these locations also ensures that the adjacent SEPP14 Wetland continues to receive runoff.

As the development is also on land that adjoins bushland zoned or reserved for public open space purposes, the determining authority must be satisfied, pursuant to Clause 9 Land adjoining land zoned or reserved for open space, that it has taken into account:

- the need to retain any bushland on the land,
- the effect of the proposed development on bushland zoned or reserved for public open space purposes and, in particular, on the erosion of soils, the siltation of streams and waterways and the spread of weeds and exotic plants within the bushland, and
- any other matters which, in the opinion of the approving or consent authority, are relevant to the protection and preservation of bushland zoned or reserved for public open space purposes.

The development site has little to no native vegetation. The development proposal will include a perimeter road and path / cycleway and vegetated swale along the length of the existing bushland. As such this should provide good boundary conditions to limit edge effects to the bushland.

SEPP 55 Remediation of Land

As mentioned, the site had a public housing estate constructed on it from 1979 to 2002. Fibrous sheeting containing asbestos was used in its construction. The estate was demolished in 2002. The applicant has provided to Council a copy of a report on the removal of Asbestos from the site. The report is titled – "Asbestos Removal Validation Report – Former Public Housing Estate, Booragul, NSW (March 2005)". Parsons Brinckerhoff Pty Ltd are the authors of this report. This report concluded that all surface fibrous cement fragments had been removed from the site. The report did indicate that it was likely that some subsurface asbestos fragments may still be present and that any redevelopment of the site would require further subsurface investigations and the preparation of a Remedial Action Plan (in accordance with the NSW EPA Guidelines.

As it is likely that some contamination still exists within the site SEPP 55 Remediation of Land applies.

The relevant clauses of the planning instrument follow:-

7 Contamination and remediation to be considered in determining development application

(1) A consent authority must not consent to the carrying out of any development on land unless:

(a) it has considered whether the land is contaminated, and

(b) if the land is contaminated, it is satisfied that the land is suitable in its contaminated state (or will be suitable, after remediation) for the purpose for which the development is proposed to be carried out, and

As such the JRPP can consent to the application under this Clause.

Under Clause 8 and 9 of the SEPP it can be seen that any remediation works would be classified as "Category 1" due to the location of the site and its capture under SEPP 71 Coastal Protection.

8 Remediation work permissible

- (1) A person may carry out a remediation work in accordance with this Policy, despite any provision to the contrary in an environmental planning instrument, except as provided by clause 19 (3).
- (2) A person must not carry out a category 1 remediation work except with the consent of the consent authority.
- (3) A person may carry out a category 2 remediation work without the consent of the consent authority.
- (4) A person who carries out a remediation work must ensure that clause 16 (if it applies) and clauses 17 and 18 are complied with in relation to the work.

Note. See clause 19 for the relationship of this Policy to other environmental planning instruments.

9 Category 1 remediation work: work needing consent

For the purposes of this Policy, a category 1 remediation work is a remediation work (not being a work to which clause 14 (b) applies) that is:

- (a) designated development, or
- (b) carried out or to be carried out on land declared to be a critical habitat, or
- (c) likely to have a significant effect on a critical habitat or a threatened species, population or ecological community, or
- (d) development for which another State environmental planning policy or a regional environmental plan requires development consent, or
- (e) carried out or to be carried out in an area or zone to which any classifications to the following effect apply under an environmental planning instrument:
 - (i) coastal protection,.....

Clause 13 of SEPP 55 requires the application to be advertised as *other advertised development* in accordance with the EP& A Regulation. The application was advertised in accordance with the Regulation.

A condition of consent has been included that requires further investigation of the site for contamination and then satisfactory remediation and validation.

SEPP 71 Coastal Protection

As the development site is located within 100m of a SEPP14 Wetland, the development is defined as being in "sensitive coastal location" and as such SEPP71 applies.

Clause 8 of the SEPP (71) outlines the Matters of Consideration for the SEPP. Many of the Matters for consideration do not apply in this instance as the development is adjacent to a wetland area and not a coastal foreshore. The pertinent matters are those that relate to protection of the ecological values of the adjacent wetland. With regard to this, the main impact would be from storm water runoff from the development site. The development is proposing to maintain a similar storm water management regime to that which existed with the previous Department of Housing development. This new subdivision will be expected to release storm water to the wetland that is of an improved quality, however, due to the inclusion of additional treatment facilities in comparison to the previous Department of Housing development. This development of Housing development. This will include rainwater tanks, gross pollutant traps and roadside swales. All of which were not previously included.

Clause 18 of the SEPP requires a master plan be adopted by the Minister for the land prior to any consent being issued or the Minister may waive the need for a master plan. In this instance, the applicant has applied for, and the Minister has granted, a waiver.

SEPP (Major Development)

This development is captured by Clause 13C (d) of SEPP (Major Development)

"13C Coastal development to which Part applies

This Part applies to development within the coastal zone for any of the following purposes:

(d) subdivision for residential purposes of land that is not in the metropolitan coastal zone (unless it is wholly or partly in a sensitive coastal location) into more than 25 lots but not more than 100 lots,"

The development proposes to create 80 residential lots, therefore the Consent Authority for the application becomes the Joint Regional Planning Panel.

Lake Macquarie Local Environmental Plan 2004 (LM LEP 2004)

The requirements of the Lake Macquarie Local Environment Plan 2004 have been considered. Comments are provided on the following relevant clauses.

Part 2 Lifestyle 2020 Strategy - vision, values and aims

Clause 14 Aims – The aims if the *Lifestyle 2020 Strategy* are to:

- (a) provide the community with realistic expectations about the future development patterns for land in Lake Macquarie City, while retaining flexibility for land use decision making in the longer term, and
- (b) reinforce and strengthen centres so that a wide range of commercial and community services may be provided in a timely and accessible manner, and

- (c) provide local employment opportunities for residents and promote economic development consistent with the City's natural, locational and community resources, and
- (d) guide the development of urban communities that are compact, distinct and diverse and include a range of housing types and activities, and
- (e) achieve a strong sense of positive community identity, through the development of local communities that are safe and liveable and offer a diversity of uses, economic opportunities and ready access to services, and
- (f) develop an attractive urban setting for the City which reflects its physical and natural environment, and visual character, and
- (g) manage the City's natural environment so that its ecological functions and biological diversity are conserved and enhanced, and contribute to the City's overall well being, and
- (h) manage the City's heritage and economic resources in a way that protects the value of these resources and enhances the City's character, and
- (i) integrate land use with the efficient provision of public and private movement systems.

The application addresses these aims. The subdivision will provide for the opportunity to construct housing that is immediately adjacent to an existing community. Connectivity is provided to the existing road system and also improved road linkages through to Marmong Street will be made available. The natural and heritage values of the site are respected.

Part 3 General control for land within zones

Clause 15 General controls for land within zones

All the proposed residential lots are zoned 2(1) Residential. The objectives of the zone are:-

- (a) permit development of neighbourhoods of low-density housing, and
- (b) provide for general stores, community service activities or development that includes home businesses whilst maintaining and enhancing the residential amenity of the surrounding area, and
- (c) ensure that housing development respects the character of surrounding development and is of good quality design, and
- (d) provide for sustainable water cycle management

The proposal meets the objectives of the zone by providing an opportunity for a neighbourhood of eighty lots of low density housing. The development and future housing will incorporate measures to address sustainable water cycle management.

Part 4 Special provisions applying to all land

Clause 16 Development Consent – matters for consideration

The documentation provided with this application has adequately demonstrated regard to the vision, values, and aims of the Lifestyle 2020 Strategy.

Clause 17 Provision of essential infrastructure

Essential infrastructure including, the supply of water, provision of energy, provision of telecommunications and the disposal and management of sewer is capable of being provided.

Clause 24 Subdivision

The proposed subdivision layout and associated lots comply with the requirements of Schedule 2 Subdivision Standards.

Clause 30 Control of Pollution

Reasonable and practical methods can be implemented to control pollution likely to occur as a result of the development.

Clause 31 Erosion and sediment control

The controls proposed in the Soil and Water Management Plan provided by the applicant, are considered to be practical and reasonable, and capable of preventing or minimising the effects of erosion and sediment. If the application were to be approved, an appropriate condition of consent in relation to the control of erosion and sediment would be applicable.

Clause 33 Bushfire considerations

The application was referred to the NSW Rural Fire Service (RFS) requesting General Terms of Approval. The RFS, in correspondence dated 27 July 2010, issued a Bush Fire Safety Authority for the development.

Clause 34 Trees and native vegetation

The proposed development site contains few native trees or other native vegetation.

For further detail refer to comments under Section 5A, SEPP 14, SEPP 19 and SEPP 71.

Clause 36 Acid Sulfate Soils

It can be seen from Figure 6 that the site has been mapped as predominately Class 5 for potential acid sulfate soils. A potential acid sulfate soils category of Class 2 is present in the lower southern portions of the site.

An Acid Sulphate Management Plan will be required for the development. A condition has been recommended that will require the preparation of a Management Plan and require that all works be undertaken in accordance with the Plan.



Figure 6 - Acid Sulfate Soils Zone

Part 6 Heritage Provisions

The development site contains a heritage item that is listed in Schedule 4 (*Heritage items other than of indigenous origins and including potential archaeological sites*) of the LEP 2004. The item number is BU-03 "Quigley Grave". See Figure 7 below

The grave is located on a high part of the site adjacent to Park Parade and is proposed to sit within proposed lot 501. It is intended that proposed lot 501 will be subject to a future Small Lot Housing type development.

Council's Heritage Development Planner has assessed the proposal with regard to the impact on the heritage item and is satisfied that the proposed development will not significantly impact the item. The application proposes that the recommendation of the Conservation Options Report (Appendix 14 of Statement of Environmental Effects) be adopted as part of the conditions of consent. That is that the grave stone, concrete slab, wrought iron fence, kerbstones etc be restored. A covenant is proposed to be placed on the lot (501) requiring the ongoing maintenance of the grave after restoration.



Figure 7 Photo of Quigley Grave

Clause 43 Objective

The proposed subdivision is considered to meet the objectives of this clause. The grave currently is untended and it is surprising that it has not been vandalised to any significant degree. The current development proposes to restore the grave and immediate surrounds.

Clause 44 Protection of heritage items and heritage conservation areas

Clause 44 is the mechanism within the LEP, which allows, subject to the issue of a development consent, demolition or removal of a heritage item.

Clause 47 Assessment of heritage significance & **Clause 51** Development affecting known or potential archaeological sites or relics of European heritage significance

As discussed Council is satisfied with the proposed restoration of the grave and is satisfied that the item can be protected to at least the extent it has been in the past. With a smaller land parcel surrounding the grave giving more "ownership" to the item and with appropriate guidance on the maintenance it is hoped that the grave will remain in tact for the foreseeable future.

79C(1)(a)(ii)the provisions of any draft EPI

Not applicable.

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015

79C(1)(a)(iii) the provisions of any Development Control Plan (DCP)

Lake Macquarie City Council Development Control Plan No. 1 – Principles of Development

Part 1.9 – Development Notification Requirements

This clause is not applicable to this application as the development is classified as Nominated Integrated Development and as such is exhibited as Advertised Development. Notification, exhibition and advertising have been completed in accordance with The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. Submissions are addressed under Section 79C(1)(d) contained within this report.

Part 2.1 – Environmental Responsibility and Land Capability

Part 2.1.1 Ecological Values

A Flora and Fauna Assessment has been included with the application. The assessment concluded that there were no threatened species or communities present on the site. Recommendations within the report include inspection of the single hollow bearing tree on the site should its removal be required and that best practice methods be used for erosion and sedimentation control during construction operations so as to protect the adjacent SEPP14 wetland.

Part 2.1.2 Ecological Corridors

The proposed development does not impact any identified ecological corridors

Part 2.1.3 Scenic Values

A Visual Impact Assessment Report prepared by, Moir Landscape Architects, has been included within the Statement of Environmental Effects. This report assesses the Visual Impact of development on the site as viewed from various vantage points in the areas surrounding the site. The report concludes that the proposal will have minimal impact to the surrounding visual catchment as the topography and existing surrounding vegetation have the site in a "visual blind spot". The main impact, albeit minor, will be at the Marmong Street boundary. The report recommends some additional endemic tree planting along this edge.

Part 2.1.4 Tree Preservation and Management

The site contains few native trees and the predominant vegetation coverage is Kikuyu and Buffalo grasses. There is one hollow bearing tree on site but no threatened species were found within this tree. The main area of native vegetation is on adjacent lands to the lower southern area of the site. The application includes a perimeter road and pathway that will create a defined "hard edge" to this vegetation. The inclusion of the proposed street tree planting and future dwellings gardens will increase the mass and variety of vegetation over that currently on the site.

Part 2.1.5 Bushfire Risk

The site is identified as bush fire prone on Council's maps. The application includes an assessment of bush fire risk. The application was referred, to the NSW Rural Fire Service (RFS) requesting general terms of approval. As a result of this referral the RFS issued a Bush Fire Safety Authority subject to conditions. The application can comply with these conditions and any consent will be conditioned accordingly.

Part 2.1.6 Water Bodies, Waterways and Wetlands

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015

The site drains to a SEPP14 identified wetland. As such the quality of runoff from the site needs to be managed to mitigate impacts to the wetland. The development will incorporate Gross Pollutant Traps and vegetated swales to help to cleanse stormwater runoff. As a result of these mitigation measures, the quality of the storm water discharging from the site will improve from the current situation and will meet Council's Guidelines.

Part 2.1.7 Flood Management

The site is located adjacent to Lake Macquarie and is at the low end of a large catchment. As such it is not deemed appropriate to include stormwater detention on the development.

The application includes an analysis of flooding levels from the adjacent creek. All lots within the subdivision will be well clear of any foreseeable flooding including the impact of sea level rise.

Part 2.1.8 Development on Flood Prone Land at Dora Creek

Not Applicable.

Part 2.1.9 Sloping Land and Soils

A Geotechnical Report, by Douglas Partners, has been included with the application. This report shows that the site has no significant geotechnical constraints. As such, the site is deemed suitable for the proposed development from a slope stability point of view.

The steepest portions of the site are approximately 15% with the general overall slope being about 10%. Significant cut and fills will not be required for the subdivision civil works nor should they be required to construct future dwellings

Part 2.1.10 Acid Sulfate Soils

See discussion previously for Clause 36 of LEP.

Part 2.1.11 Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

The controls proposed in the Soil and Water Management Plan provided by the applicant, are considered practical and reasonable, and capable of preventing or minimising the effects of erosion and sedimentation. If the application were to be approved, an appropriate condition of consent in relation to the control of erosion and sediment would be applicable.

Part 2.1.12 Mine Subsidence

The applicant has sought General Terms of Approval under Section 15 of the Mine Subsidence Act 1961. The Mine Subsidence Board issued General Terms of Approval on 23 June 2010, subject to conditions.

Part 2.1.13 Contaminated Land

The applicant has provided to Council a copy of a report on the removal of Asbestos from the site. This report concluded that all surface fibrous cement fragments had been removed from the site. The report did indicate that it was likely that some subsurface asbestos fragments may still be present and that any redevelopment of the site would require further subsurface investigations and the preparation of a Remedial Action Plan (in accordance with the NSW EPA Guidelines). See discussion previously for SEPP55.

Part 2.1.14 Energy Efficiency

The solar orientation of the lots is constrained by the existing road pattern and the shape of the site, but the size and width of the lots ensures that solar access for the proposed lots is adequate. Any future dwellings proposed on the site will be subject to BASIX requirements.

Part 2.1.15 Noise and Vibration

None of the proposed lots are subject to excessive noise or vibration. A condition of consent is proposed to control noise and vibration during construction works.

Part 2.1.16 Air Quality

The proposed development will have minimal impact on the air quality of the surrounds.

Part 2.2 – Social Impact

Part 2.2.1 Social Impact Statement

Council's Coordinator Social and Community Planning has reviewed the application and has advised that he does not believe that the proposed eighty lot residential subdivision will result in any significant negative social impacts.

The site adjoins an existing residential area and is relatively well serviced, with a range of services, facilities and access to public transport nearby. Although the proposed subdivision will result in increased population in the area, due to the previous use of the site as a medium density housing estate, there will be no net impact on local services.

Part 2.3 – Economic Impact

Part 2.3.1 Economic Impact Assessment

It is expected that the proposed development will have a positive economic impact on the locality.

Part 2.4 – Heritage

See discussion previously in report under Part 6 Heritage Provisions.

Part 2.5 – Stormwater Management, Infrastructure and On-site Services

Part 2.5.1 Essential Infrastructure

Essential infrastructure including the supply of water, electricity, communication and sewage are available to the site.

Part 2.5.2 On-Site Wastewater Treatment

Not applicable.

Part 2.5.3 Stormwater Management

The proposed stormwater strategy is considered acceptable. The stormwater management plan prepared by ADW Johnson adequately addresses stormwater quality and quantity within the proposed subdivision to a level appropriate for the DA stage.

The strategy relies upon the discharge of stormwater through Crown land, to the adjacent creek. As such drainage easements for this discharge will be required to be created on the Crown land. The lot owned by the Crown is included in the lands to which this application applies and

the Land and Property Management Authority has provided consent for the application to be lodged. The creation of these drainage easements will be conditioned in any consent that may be issued.

Part 2.5.4 On-Site Stormwater Harvesting

Stormwater harvesting tanks are identified as part of the quality treatment process for the development. Any future dwellings constructed on the site are likely to be required to install a rain water tank in order to comply with the SEPP BASIX legislation.

Part 2.5.5 Waste Management for Multi-Unit Dwellings

Not applicable.

Part 2.6 – Transport, Parking, Access and Servicing

Part 2.6.1 Movement System

The proposed road system provides for good connection to the existing street network and continues the general "grid" type pattern of the surrounding area. Proposed intersections are located appropriately with regard to traffic movements and sight distances.

Part 2.6.2 Traffic Generating Development

The proposal is not identified as traffic generating development under SEPP Infrastructure. Therefore this control is not applicable.

Part 2.6.3 Road - Design

The road design within the proposed subdivision is generally acceptable in relation to geometric design and vertical geometry. The network facilitates pedestrian, cyclist and vehicular movement. The road types and dimensions comply with Table 1 of DCP 1. Some minor works at the proposed intersection with Marmong Street will be required to ensure a satisfactory intersection configuration. Details of these works are included within the proposed condition of consent. Some works will also be required at the bend in Park Parade (adjacent to proposed lot 307) so as to ensure that through traffic on Park Parade remains the priority movement with the new road being required to give way.

Part 2.6.4 Pedestrian and Cycle Paths

The application proposes footpaving to one side of all of the proposed roads. A pedestrian / cycle path is also proposed to link Marmong Street with Denman Way.

Council will also require that a pedestrian refuge be provided on Marmong Street south-east of the proposed access road into the estate, providing connectivity of the shared pathway through the development with the existing shared path on Marmong Street.

It is considered that pedestrian and cycle paths proposed within the development are adequate.

Part 2.6.5 Public Transport

The development accesses to Marmong Street which is a bus route (Routes 270 and 271, which link Toronto/Glendale/University) for Hunter Valley Buses. The applicant is required to investigate and discuss with Hunter Valley Buses the need for additional bus stops along Marmong Street in the vicinity of the proposed intersection, on both sides of Marmong Street.

Part 2.6.6 Vehicle Parking Provision

The proposal provides adequate car parking opportunities.

Part 2.6.7 Car Parking Areas and Structures

Not applicable.

Part 2.6.8 Vehicle Access

Not applicable.

Part 2.6.9 Access to Bushfire Risk Areas

The proposed roads within the development will comply with the requirements of the NSW Rural Fire Service with regard to carriageway width and grade.

Part 2.6.10 Servicing Areas

Not applicable.

Part 2.6.11 On-Site Bicycle Facilities

Not applicable.

Part 2.6.12 Non-Discriminatory Access and Use

The proposal provides opportunity for equitable access for all members of the community.

Part 2.7 – Streetscape and the Public Realm

Part 2.7.1 Streetscape and Local Character

The proposed development's streetscape will be in keeping with the streetscape of the adjacent existing residential development.

Part 2.7.2 Landscape

A Landscaping plan and accompanying report has been included with the application. The documentation adequately addresses Council's Landscaping controls.

Part 2.7.3 Public Open Space

A Section 94 Contribution is proposed to be made for the provision of public open space.

Part 2.7.4 Pedestrian Networks and Places

Adequate pedestrian networks are proposed within the development.

Part 2.7.5 Light, Glare and Reflection

Not applicable.

Part 2.7.6 Views

The views of existing dwellings surrounding the subdivision site should not be significantly impacted by the development or future dwellings. The proposed alignment of the streets will ensure that view corridors are created and maintained to the southern wetland area.

Part 2.7.7 Signs

Not applicable.

Part 2.7.8 Fences

Not applicable.

Part 2.7.9 Safety and Security

The subdivision layout is satisfactory in regard to safety and security.

Part 3.1 - Lake, Waterway and Coastline Development

Not Applicable.

Part 3.2 – Subdivision

Part 3.2.1 Neighbourhood Design

The applicant has undertaken a site survey and site analysis. Information from these has been used to aid in the design of the lot layout. The lot layout responds to the site characteristics and has regard to the pattern of surrounding development. The proposed road will allow the existing community more options for both vehicular and pedestrian travel through better linkages to Marmong Street.

Part 3.2.2 Lot Size and Layout

Lots within the proposed subdivision comply with the requirements of Schedule 2 of LMLEP 2004.

Part 3.2.3 Subdivision in the Conservation, Environmental and Rural Zones

Not applicable.

Part 3.2.4 Community Title Subdivision

Not Applicable.

Part 3.2.5 Boundary Realignment

Not applicable.

Part 3.3 – Urban Centre Development

Not Applicable.

Part 3.4 – Building Siting, Form and Design

Not Applicable.

Part 3.5 – Housing – Specific Housing Types

Not Applicable.

Part 3.6 – Industrial, Bulky Goods and Utility Installation Development

Not Applicable.

Part 3.7 Specific Land Uses

Not applicable.

Part 4 – Area Plans

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015

Not Applicable

79C(1)(a)(iiia) any planning agreement that has been entered into

No planning agreements have been entered into.

79C(1)(a)(iv) any matters prescribed by the regulations

There are no matters prescribed to be considered.

79C(1)(b) the likely impacts of the development

The following matters were considered and, where applicable, have been addressed under 79C(1)(a)(i) & (iii).

Context & Setting	Waste
Access, transport & traffic	Energy
Public domain	Noise & vibration
Utilities	Natural hazards
Heritage	Technological hazards
Other land resources	Safety, security & crime prevention
Water	Social impact on the locality
Soils	Economic impact on the locality
Air & microclimate	Site design & internal design
Flora & fauna	Construction
Cumulativo Impacts	

Cumulative Impacts

79C(1)(c) the suitability of the site for development

The majority of the site is appropriately zoned 2(1) Residential which allows subdivision as a permissible use. The site has little ecological value due to its previous use as a housing estate. The terrain is not overly steep and will allow options for dwelling designs, such as slab on ground, pier and beam or split level. The site is not visible from many locations external to the site as such any development will have little visual impact.

It is considered that the proposed development is ideally suited to the site.

79C(1)(d) any submissions made in accordance with this Act or the Regulations

Public Submissions

The application was placed upon exhibition in accordance with the EP & A Act and Regulation. Two submissions were received as a result of the exhibition. These submissions have been previously forwarded to the JRPP.

One submission, from the Lake Macquarie & District Historical Society Inc., supported the recommendations of the Conservation Options Report provided with the application. The only

point of objection was that the Society would prefer that the ownership of Quigley's Grave be given to Lake Macquarie Council or the Crown. In regard to this Council is satisfied with the proposed restoration and future ownership as proposed.

The other submission was from a neighbour of the site (77 Marmong Street). This property is located next to proposed lot 109. The submission contained objections on four matters – privacy, buffer, traffic and character.

It can be seen on Figure 4 that the property sits adjacent, and above, lot 9. The rear property boundary is to the proposed road reserve. It is not considered that future dwellings within the proposed subdivision should present significant privacy concerns. The dwelling at No 77 Marmong Street is more likely to impact the privacy of future dwellings as it sits higher than the nearest proposed lots (Lots 9 & 10). The proposed road and footpath area to the rear of No. 77 should provide for some buffering to the bulk of the proposed subdivision.

With regard to character, it is considered that the proposed subdivision is very much in character with the surrounding residential development. The subdivision contains similar road and lot sizes and will facilitate the construction of similar dwellings. This current proposal is more in character than the previous 114 dwelling Housing Commission development that existed on the site for many years.

Council's Traffic Engineer is satisfied that the surrounding road system has sufficient capacity to absorb the traffic from the proposed development.

Submissions From Public Authorities

The following public authorities were notified of the application, responses received are noted:

- Mine Subsidence Board advised general terms of approval on 23 June 2010.
- NSW Rural Fire Service issued a Bush Fire Safety Authority on 27 July 2010.
- Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water (Office of Water) provided General Terms of Approval on 20 July 2010.

79C(1)(e) the public interest

There are no significant matters that show that the proposal is not in the public interest.

SECTION 91 INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT

The proposed development is defined as Integrated Development under Section 91 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, as the applicant has sought General Terms of Approval under the various acts listed below.

Mine Subsidence Compensation Act 1961

The applicant has sought General Terms of Approval under Section 15 of the Mine Subsidence Act 1961. General Terms of Approval, subject to conditions were granted by the Mine Subsidence Board on 23 July 2010.

Rural Fires Act 1997

The applicant has sought General Terms of Approval for a Bushfire Safety Authority under Section 100B of the Rural Fires Act 1997. On 27 July 2010, the NSW Rural Fire Service issued a Bush Fire Safety Authority.

Water Management Act 2000

The applicant has sought General Terms of Approval for an approval under Section 91 of the Water Management Act 2000. General Terms of Approval were granted on 20 July 2010 by the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water.

2 SECTION 94 CONTRIBUTIONS

The proposed development, if approved, would be subject to contributions, as it would ultimately result in an increase in demand for public amenities and services including public open space, community facilities, road works, footpath works or the like.

Section 94 contribution fees will be calculated based on Lake Macquarie City Council Section 94 Contribution Plan No. 1 City Wide – 2004.

3 CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION

Based on the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed development is an acceptable scale and type of development for the site.

It is therefore recommended, that the application be approved, subject to the proposed Conditions of Approval contained in Appendix A of this report.

David Pavitt Principal Development Engineer Lake Macquarie City Council

I have reviewed the above planning assessment report and concur with the recommendation.

Greg Field Chief Subdivision Engineer Lake Macquarie City Council

APPENDIX A – Condition of Consent

Conditions of Consent

(Approved subject to the conditions specified in this notice and in accordance with

the stamped approved plans.)

Reason for the Imposition of Conditions

The reason for the imposition of the following conditions is to ensure, to Council's

satisfaction, the objects of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as

amended) are achieved:

- (a) To encourage:
 - The proper management, development and conservation of natural and artificial resources, including agricultural land, natural areas, forest, minerals, water, cities, towns, and villages for the purpose of promoting the social and economic welfare of the community and a better environment,
 - (ii) The promotion and co-ordination of the orderly and economic use of development of land,
 - (iii) The protection, provision, and co-ordination of communication and utility services,
 - (iv)The provision of land for public purposes,
 - (v) The provision and co-ordination of community services and facilities, and
 - (vi) The protection of the environment, including the protection and conservation of native animals and plants including threatened species, populations, and ecological communities and their habitats, and
 - (vii) Ecologically Sustainable Development, and
 - (viii) The provision and maintenance of affordable housing,
- (b) To promote the sharing of the responsibility for environmental planning between the different levels of government in the State, and
- (c) To provide increased opportunity for public involvement and participation in environmental planning and assessment.

1. The Approved Development And Compliance With Conditions

Compliance with Conditions

The approval comprises the application, the plans, and the documents set out in the

paragraph below and the conditions of consent. The proposed development may only

proceed in accordance with these documents.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the conditions of consent and

the following documents (as may be varied by the conditions of consent):-

- A. Statement of Environmental Effects by adw Johnson Pty Ltd (May 2010)
- Β. Lot Layout by adw Johnson Pty Ltd (25/10/2010).
- C. Stormwater Management Plan & Concept Engineering Plans by adw Johnson Pty Ltd (May 2010).
- D. Flood Assessment by Worley Parsons (27 April 2010)
- E. Slope Stability Assessment by Douglas Partners (June 2008).
- F. Bushfire Hazard Assessment by Barry Eadie Consulting Pty Ltd (3 April 2010).
- G. Flora, Fauna & Threatened Species Assessment by ecobiological.
- H. Landscaping Masterplan Report & associated plans by Moir Landscape Architecture.
- Ι. Quigley's Grave, Marmong Street, Booragul Conservation Options Report by MUSE cape Pty Ltd (12 March 2010)
- J. Visual Impact Assessment (5 May 2010)
- K. Traffic Assessment Report by BJ Bradley & Assoc (23 March 2010)

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to meet all expenses incurred in undertaking the

development including expenses incurred in complying with conditions imposed by this

consent.

It is the Applicant's responsibility to provide all Compliance Certificates, documentation and other evidence to verify that the conditions and requirements imposed by this consent have been complied with.

2. **Environmental Management**

Erosion Controls

The Applicant shall submit for approval with the Construction Certificate, a Soil and Water Management Plan for the development in accordance with Council's Development Control Plan No. 1 – and Landcom's – Managing Urban Stormwater documents (2004).

No more than 2.5 hectares of the site shall be exposed to erosion at any time.

The applicant shall arrange for a detailed record of the erosion and sediment controls on the site to be maintained during construction works. The record shall be updated on a daily basis and shall contain details on the conditions of the controls and all maintenance and cleaning undertaken.

The record must be available for inspection by the Principal Certifying Authority during normal working hours.

Plans and calculations for such erosion controls shall be submitted prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate and the works shall be completed as part of the initial construction work in the first stage of the development. Minor additional works may be approved by the Principal Certifying Authority during construction works.

Erosion Control Sign

The Applicant shall supply and erect Council's standard Erosion Control Sign as detailed in Standard Drawing No. 3403/1. The sign shall be erected in a prominent location near the entrance to the development prior to the commencement of earthworks.

Preservation of Trees

Trees and other vegetation may only be removed from the site of road, drainage, bushfire mitigation and regrading works as approved in the Construction Certificate. An application shall be made to Council in accordance with Clause 34 of Council's LMLEP 2004 for the removal of any other trees.

All reasonable measures shall be undertaken to protect all other vegetation on the site and on adjoining lands from damage during construction. Such measures shall include but not be limited to:-

* clearly marking trees to remain

- * avoiding compaction of ground around trees to remain
- * clearly delineating the area of disturbance, and keeping all vehicles, construction materials and refuse within that area
- * limiting the number of access points.

Salvage of Trees and Shrubs

Trees and shrubs which are felled shall be salvaged for re-use, either in log form, or as a woodchip mulch for erosion control and/or site rehabilitation. Non-salvageable material such as roots and stumps shall be disposed of in an approved manner.

3. Retention of Trees Native Vegetation (Development)

All native vegetation on the site shall be retained and protected unless it:

- a. has been identified for removal on the approved plans or documentation; or
- b. has been identified for selective removal by the NSW Rural Fire Service.

An application shall be made to Council in accordance with Clause 34 of Council's LM LEP 2004 for the removal of any other trees or native vegetation. This includes application for the removal of any understorey vegetation or the stripping of ground cover vegetation that is outside those areas approved for construction.

All reasonable measures shall be undertaken to protect all other native vegetation on the site and on adjoining lands from damage during construction. Such measures shall include but not be limited to:

- installing exclusion fencing (eg; No Go tape, helicopter tape or orange mesh) around vegetation that adjoins the construction area to minimise damage to vegetation that is to be retained. Exclusion fencing is to be installed prior to commencement of works and maintained in good working order for the duration of works;
- prohibiting compaction and the placement of fill within 5 metres of trees and native vegetation that are to be retained;
- keeping all vehicles, construction materials and refuse within areas approved for buildings, structures, access ways and car parks;

- limiting the number of access points;
- Salvaging useable trees and shrubs which are felled for re-use, either in log form, or as woodchip mulch for erosion control and/or site rehabilitation. Nonsalvageable material such as roots and stumps may only be disposed of at an approved site;
- Notifying all contractors, sub-contractors, and personnel of vegetation protection requirements of this condition.

4. Hollow Bearing Tree Removal

The applicant shall engage a qualified ecologist or wildlife carer to supervise the removal of any hollow bearing trees to ensure mitigation against any native animal welfare issues.

Removal of trees with habitat hollows shall be undertaken in either March, April,

September or October, to minimise impact to threatened species that could breed and or

hibernate within hollows on site. Any hollow-bearing trees shall be felled in one (1) to two

(2) metre sections, beginning at the top of the crown. Lengths cut from the tree(s) shall be

in a manner that will preserve the hollow(s) with each section inspected and appropriately

treated to minimise impact to fauna.

Grassing

The Applicant shall grass areas of the site disturbed by works so as to prevent erosion. All disturbed areas shall be revegetated as soon as practical, and no later than the times specified in Landcom's – Managing Urban Stormwater documents (2004).

Kikuyu grass shall not be used in areas adjoining native bushland or in drainage lines or channels.

Landscaping Works

The Applicant shall undertake landscaping works in accordance with the plans prepared by Moir Landscape Architecture.

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015

No planting shall take place prior to the approval of the final landscaping plan by a **Construction Certificate**.

Any street trees to be planted shall be at least of a 75 – 100 litre pot size.

Correspondence shall be provided from a recognised Landscaping professional, that indicates that the landscaping works have been completed in accordance with the approved plan, prior to the issue of the **Subdivision Certificate** for that stage. All landscaping works shall be maintained for a period of twelve months.

The Applicant shall lodge a cash bond or Bank Guarantee with the Council for the sum of **\$2000.00 per stage**. The monies will be released 12 months after planting when Council is satisfied that the landscaping has established for each respective stage.

Gross Pollutant Trap

The Applicant shall design and construct permanent Gross Pollutant Traps and Trash Racks to service all stormwater drainage lines that discharge from the site to the southern creek / wetland area.

The design shall be in accordance with the requirements of DCP 1(Volume 2 – Engineering Guidelines Part 3). Provision shall be made for maintenance access roads and maintenance vehicle parking.

Satisfactory plans and calculations for such Gross Pollutant Traps and Trash Racks shall be submitted prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

The applicant shall include a "Maintenance Plan" with the Construction Certificate documentation, in accordance with Council's "Stormwater Treatment Framework & Stormwater Quality Improvement Device Guidelines".

Water Quality Control Facilities

JRPP (Hunter and Central Coast) Business Paper – 2 December 2010 - 2010HCC015

The Applicant shall design and construct permanent Stormwater Quality Facilities generally in accordance with the design and plans prepared by Adw Johnson Pty Ltd.

Plans and calculations for such Stormwater Quality Control Facilities shall be submitted for approval prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate. The plan shall include details of maintenance access and details of landscaping and species for the facility and their surrounds.

The applicant shall include a "Maintenance Plan" with the Construction Certificate documentation, in accordance with Council's "Stormwater Treatment Framework & Stormwater Quality Improvement Device Guidelines".

Noise Control

All possible steps shall be taken to silence construction equipment and the operating noise level of plant and equipment shall not give rise to "offensive noise" as defined by the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997.

The operating noise level of machinery, plant and equipment during construction site operations shall comply with Chapter 171 of the NSW EPA's Noise Control Manual.

Construction operations shall be confined between the hours of 7.00am to 6.00pm Monday to Friday and 8.00am to 1.00pm Saturday. If construction operations are inaudible within occupied residential properties then the work period may be extended on Saturdays to 7.00am to 1.00pm. No construction work shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Should it be necessary to use mechanical rock breakers or conduct blasting then these operations shall be confined between the hours of 9.00am and 3.30pm Monday to Friday (excluding any Public Holiday).

Noise Level Restrictions

(i) Construction period of 4 weeks and under:-

The L10 level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A).

(ii) Construction period greater than 4 weeks:-

The L10 level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation must not exceed the background level by more than 10dB(A).

Controlled Activity Approval

The Applicant shall comply with the Controlled Activity Approval granted by the

Department of Water and Energy for this development. A copy of the Department's

approval, under the Water Management Act 2000, is attached to this consent.

No Construction Certificates will be issued over any part of the site requiring a Controlled Activity Approval until a copy of the Approval has been provided to Council.

5. Provision Of Utility Services

Service of Public Utilities

The Applicant shall service all lots in the subdivision with water, sewer, underground electricity and underground telephone facilities to the requirements of and by arrangements with the relevant supply authorities and company. The applicant shall liaise with AGL in relation to the future reticulation of gas in the subdivision.

A letter of compliance from each service authority and service company shall be submitted to Council prior to the issue of a **Subdivision Certificate**.

Installation of Service Pipes

The Applicant shall ensure that all public utility service pipes, mains and conduits are laid and/or installed in all new roads and existing roads, where work is required in existing roads, as part of the construction and drainage works associated with the Subdivision.

The Applicant shall also install conduits to cater for the installation of natural gas services to each proposed lot in conjunction with road and drainage works.

A letter of compliance from each service authority and service company shall be submitted to Council prior to the issue of a **Subdivision Certificate**.

Utilities Layout

The Applicant shall submit to the Principal Certifying Authority a utilities layout plan showing the location of mains, associated installations and service conduits prior to the issue of a **Subdivision Certificate**.

6. Roads And Drainage Construction Works

Roadways and Drainage Works Standards

The Applicant shall arrange for all relevant works to be designed and constructed in accordance with the following publications (as amended or updated), as applicable:-

- a) Australian Rainfall and Runoff, 1987.
- b) AUSTROADS Guide To Traffic Engineering Practice.
- c) DCP 1 (Volumes 1 and 2) and supporting guidelines.
- d) Roads and Traffic Authority Road Design Guide.
- e) Roads and Traffic Authority Interim Guide To Signs and Markings.
- f) Managing Urban Stormwater documents (2004).by Landcom.
- g) The Constructed Wetlands Manual Department of Land and Water Conservation, 1998.
- h) Subdivision Code

Where any inconsistency exists between these documents the Applicant shall verify in

writing with Council, the relevant standard to be adopted.

Details Required Prior to Commencement

Construction works in accordance with this development consent shall not commence until:-

- (a) detailed engineering plans and specifications (including a Design Certification Report and Checklists in accordance with the Lake Macquarie City Council Engineering Guidelines) relating to the work have been endorsed with a Construction Certificate by :-
 - (i) Council, or
 - (ii) an appropriately Accredited certifier accredited in accordance with the Building

Professionals Board Accreditation Scheme, and

An Application For A Construction Certificate Can Only Be Made To Lake Macquarie City Council For All Works On Existing Public Roads (In Accordance With Council's Authority Under The Roads Act).

- (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent:-
 - (i) has appointed a Principal Certifying Authority, and
 - (ii) has notified the consent authority and the Council (if the Council is not the

consent authority) of the appointment, and

(c) the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least two (2) days notice to Council of the intention to commence works.

7. Stormwater Management

Show Lots Clear of 100 Year Flood Level

The Applicant shall show by calculations and plans that all lots are clear of the 1:100 year

flood level. This condition shall also apply to lots which would be affected by substantial

overland flow, which may necessitate the carrying out of works to ensure properly drained

and flood free conditions.

The Applicant shall supply the above calculations and plans showing the limit of the 1:100 year flood prior to the issue of a **Construction Certificate**.

Note: Lots that are not 500mm clear of the 1:100 year flood level will be subject to floor height control.

Interallotment Drainage (Engineering Plans)

The Applicant, when preparing Engineering plans for the development, shall identify any lots that do not drain directly to Council's stormwater drainage systems. For these lots the Registered Proprietor of the land shall arrange for the provision of interallotment drainage pipelines and associated easements to drain water 2 metres wide favouring the allotments served. All stormwater shall be disposed of to either an existing formed Council drainage system or a natural watercourse. Where applicable, the Applicant shall obtain for lodgement with Council written authority from affected owners agreeing to the discharge of stormwater across their properties prior to the issue of a **Construction Certificate**.

The Registered Proprietor of the land shall subsequently create easement(s) to drain water over those properties, prior to, or at the time of registration of the Final Plan of Subdivision.

Council is to be the party empowered to release, vary or modify the easement.

Provision of Council Easements

The Applicant shall arrange for the creation of easements to drain water, (minimum 3 metres wide or the width of the 100 year flow path, whichever is greater), in favour of Council to the sizes and locations indicated on an approved copy of the subdivision layout plan attached hereto.
The Registered Proprietor of the land shall arrange for the creation of easements to drain water over the Crown land in favour of Council, prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate that requires drainage over or through the Crown land.

Stormwater Standards

The Applicant shall arrange for the design and construction of stormwater drainage works in accordance with the requirements of the publications and standards identified in this consent.

No works shall commence on site prior to the issue of a **Construction Certificate** and all works shall be completed prior to the issue of a **Subdivision Certificate**.

8. Roadways, Accessways And Footways

Dedication of Roads

The Applicant shall arrange, at the time of registration of the Final Plan of Subdivision, for

the dedication of the proposed new roads to the public at no cost to Council.

All public roads that are to be dedicated shall be fully constructed in accordance with the

standards identified in this consent.

Construction of Kerb and Gutter and Associated Works

- Marmong Street is a bus route (270 and 271). The applicant is to investigate and discuss with Hunter Valley Buses the need for additional bus stops on both sides of Marmong Street in the vicinity of the proposed intersection. Any new bus stop is to conform with the Disability Discrimination Act requirements for accessibility.
- Provide a pedestrian refuge on Marmong Street south-east of the proposed access road into the estate, providing connectivity of the shared pathway through the development with the existing shared path on Marmong Street.
- Park Parade where it bends 90 degrees at the proposed intersection with the new road (forming a T intersection) should be designed as a modified T intersection (see AS1742.13:2009 sketch below), with the new road terminating at Park Parade. The concrete islands on the sketch should be replaced with BB line marking and Raised Pavement Markers.
- At the end of the proposed road within stage 1 (adjacent to lots 111 / 112) a temporary turning facility shall be created. The turning facility shall be sized in

accordance with Council's Engineering Guidelines and DCP1 and shall be sealed and drained. An easement shall be created over the turning area, in favour of the public, so as to permit vehicular movements. The easement shall be extinguished with the registration of stage 2 of the development.



No works shall commence on site prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

Linemarking and Signposting

All regulatory linemarking and sign posting on Public roads shall be submitted to Council's Traffic Facilities & Road Safety Committee. The works shall not commence until approved by the Committee.

Intersection Upgrade

The Applicant shall construct at the intersection of the proposed road and Marmong Street, kerb returns into Marmong Street and a minimum 30 metre tapers to the existing seal in Marmong Street for the left in/out turning movements from the development. The works at the intersection shall provide adequate turning area for trucks to access the development.

The road embankment on the north-western side of Marmong Street near the proposed intersection, shall be regraded to improve the sight distance for vehicles utilising the intersection to the development. All works, including the kerb and gutter and associated road pavement, road shoulders including drainage and adjustment to existing constructions shall be in accordance with the provisions of the publications and standards identified in this consent.

The pavement design for the intersection shall include a geotechnical investigation to assess the capability of the existing pavement to accommodate any new turning movements. Any costs associated with rehabilitation and sealing of the existing pavement to meet the road design ESA's shall be borne by the developer.

No works shall commence on site prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

Marmong Street Access Restriction

A restrictive covenant shall be placed on all lots that have a boundary to Marmong Street. The wording of the covenant shall be to the effect that no vehicular access shall be permitted directly to Marmong Street.

Pavement Standards

Residential road pavements shall be designed in accordance with "A Guide To The Design Of New Pavements For Light Traffic" - AUSTROADS 1998. Main and industrial road pavements are to be designed in accordance with "Pavement Design, A Guide to the Structural Design of Road Pavements" - AUSTROADS 1992. Designs for road pavements shall be submitted to and approved by the Council or a Private Certifier prior to road pavements being constructed. Where work is to be undertaken within a classified Main Road the pavement design shall also be submitted to the Roads and Traffic Authority for it's approval prior to the commencement of works.

Traffic Control Standards

For the duration of work being carried out as part of this development, the Applicant shall ensure that traffic control is undertaken in accordance with the requirements of Australian Standards AS 1742 - Manual Uniform Traffic Control Services – Parts 1, 2 and 3.

Notification to Neighbours

Written notification shall be given by the Applicant to landowners and residents who live adjacent to the proposed development or who may be affected by the proposed works. The notification should include the expected date of commencement of works and a brief description of the works.

Haulage Routes

The Applicant shall submit to Council, in writing, details of the proposed haulage routes to be used during construction works. These details must be submitted a minimum of seven days before the commencement of haulage operations. No haulage operations shall take place prior to the approval of the routes by Council. The haulage routes shall not be varied without the approval of Council.

The Applicant shall maintain and restore the haulage route roads, as near as possible, to their original condition.

Fix Damage Caused by Construction Work

The Applicant shall make good any damage or injury caused to a public road or associated structures including drains and kerb and gutter, caused as a consequence of the works.

Notice of Commencement of Works

Construction works shall not commence until a meeting between the contractor and a representative of the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) has taken place on site.

The PCA may require up to seven days notice in writing prior to such meeting taking place.

The notice shall also include the names of the contractor undertaking construction and the developer's supervising officer.

Works as Executed Plan

An electronic copy of the Works as Executed Plans, certified by the Consulting Civil Engineer supervising the works or the Registered Surveyor in charge and certified by the Principal Certifying Authority, shall be supplied to the Council. Where applicable a Registered Surveyor's Certificate certifying that all pipes have been laid within the easements shown on the Final Plan of Subdivision shall also be submitted. The Works as Executed Plan shall, in addition to construction details, show limits and depths of filling, locations of service conduits and street names. Note that a works as executed plan plotted on film will only be accepted where the original engineering design was hand drawn and not drafted using CAD software.

Street Lighting

The Applicant shall provide street lighting for the development to the satisfaction of Energy Australia and in accordance with the road classification. The road classification shall be determined by Council and Energy Australia.

The street lighting provided shall include any necessary upgrading of the lighting of the intersection of any new roads with existing roads.

Erection of Street Signs

The Applicant shall supply and erect new street name signs in accordance with the requirements of Council's standard design requirements. Note that all Private Roads shall be clearly signposted to indicate that they are Private roads and not Public roads.

Easement for Support

The Applicant shall arrange for the creation of an "easement for support" on the Final Plan of Subdivision submitted to cover all fill embankments that extend into lots if the side slopes are steeper than one (1) in three (3) and such embankments are in excess of six hundred (600)mm in height.

Submit Road Names for Approval

Proposed new road names shall be submitted to Council and approved prior to the issue of a **Construction Certificate**.

Note that Council cannot release the **Subdivision Certificate** unless the proposed public roads have been named in accordance with clause 162 of the Roads Act 1993. The Roads Act requires that the Geographical Names Board be given at least one month's notice of the proposed name(s).

Survey Control Marks Interference

The Applicant shall submit a statement from a Registered Surveyor verifying that the works did not interfere with any survey control marks OR the Applicant shall submit verification that the Survey Control Branch of the Department of Lands has been advised of any marks which will be destroyed and an undertaking that the requirements of the Survey Control Branch with.

9. Heritage – Quigley Grave

The applicant shall arrange for the "Recommended Conservation Works" as identified in Parts 4 and 7 of the "Quigley's Grave, Marmong Street, Booragul Conservation Options Report" by MUSE*cape* Pty Ltd dated 12 March 2010, to be undertaken. This includes restoration works to the headstone, the slab, the wrought iron fence, the kerbstones and the timber picket fence.

These works shall be completed to the satisfaction of Council prior to the release of the Subdivision Certificate for Stage 5.

A Public Positive Covenant shall be placed on proposed lot 501 requiring the owner of the lot to maintain the Grave and cartilage generally in accordance with the report above. The wording of the covenant shall be to the satisfaction of Council.

10. Bushfire Protection Measures

Bushfire Safety Authority from RFS

The Applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Bushfire Safety Authority from Rural Fire Service attached to these conditions of consent.

Compliance Bushfire Threat

Bushfire Mitigation measures shall comply with the recommendations of the report entitled "Bushfire Hazard Assessment for Residential Subdivision at Marmong Street and Park Parade Booragul NSW 2484 for Empowered Living Services" dated 3 April 2010 and

prepared by Barry Eadie Consulting Pty Ltd, subject to the following amendments:

- A public positive covenant shall be placed on the titles to lots 512 & 513 inclusive to the effect that in respect of that part of each lot that is identified as being within the Asset Protection Zone, the registered proprietor shall maintain an asset protection zone to a fuel free standard such that there is minimal fine fuel (less than 2 tonnes per hectare) at ground level.
- A restriction as to user shall be placed on the titles to lots 101, 118, 201, 202, 215, 409

 411 & 505 513 inclusive to the effect that no dwelling shall be erected on each lot unless it is of Level 2 (or equivalent BAL) Standard as described in Australian Standard 3959-1999 "Construction of Buildings in Bushfire-Prone Areas".

11. Land Stability And Earthworks

Compliance - Geotechnical Report

The Applicant shall comply with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Report No.

39569.01 prepared by Douglas Partners dated June 2008. Any works proposed to be

undertaken in relation to the application shall embody all the relevant recommendations of

the Geotechnical Consultants.

All engineering plans shall be endorsed by and carry the original signatures of the

Geotechnical Consultants (ie not photocopies). The endorsement shall state that the

proposed works are in accordance with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Report,

prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

Contamination

Land Contamination Remediation Action Plan

- Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate the applicant shall provide a Remediation Action Plan (RAP) prepared in accordance with the NSW Department of Environment and Climate Change (DECC) "Guidelines for Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Sites" and the "Managing Land Contamination: Planning Guidelines - SEPP55 - Remediation of Land".
- The RAP shall be reviewed by a NSW DECC accredited Site Auditor and include a statement issued by that auditor certifying that the RAP is practical and the site will be suitable after remediation for the proposed use, prior to issue of a Construction Certificate.
- Compliance with Remediation Action Plan

All site works shall be carried out in accordance with the terms and recommendations of the Remediation Action Plan, including but not limited to handling and disposal of materials, environmental monitoring and controls, material testing, and waste classification.

Land Contamination Site Audit Statement

Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, a Site Audit Statement prepared by a DECC accredited Site Auditor is to be submitted to Council, which clearly indicates that the site is suitable for the proposed use. Conditions on the Site Audit Statement shall form part of the consent.

Potential Acid Sulphate

The site has been identified with mapping undertaken by the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water to be within a **Class 2 & 5** zone for acid sulphate affecting the soil.

Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate for works within the Class 2 area, an assessment of acid sulphate soils potential shall be undertaken in the area affected by construction works. Should acid sulphate soils be present, an Acid Sulphate Soils Management Plan shall be prepared and submitted to Council. Guidance on the preparation of such a plan can be found in the NSW Acid Sulphate Soils Management Advisory Committee document titled Acid Sulphate Soils Manual (1998).

Site Classification of Lots

The Application shall arrange for a suitably experienced Geotechnical Consultant to determine the site classification of each proposed lot in accordance with AS 2870-1996.

The site classifications shall be provided to Council prior to the issue of the Subdivision Certificate.

12. Small Lot Housing

A restrictive covenant shall be placed on lots 501 and 514. The intent of the restriction is to require that the only type of development permissible on the lots is "Small Lot Housing" in accordance with Council's Local Environmental Plan.

The wording of the covenant is to be to the satisfaction of Council's officers. The covenant is to be created with the registration of the Subdivision Certificate for stage 5 of the development.

13. Submission For Subdivision Certificate

There are requirements which must be satisfied before the Principal Certifying Authority may issue the Subdivision Certificate pursuant to Section 109J of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 in respect of a subdivision.

Final Plan Submission

The Applicant shall submit an application for a **Subdivision Certificate** accompanied by the Final Plan of Subdivision, ten (10) copies, an A3 copy if filling of any lot has taken place and the location of all buildings and/or other permanent improvements indicated on one (1) full-size print. When all conditions of the Development Consent relating to this subdivision have been satisfactorily complied with the **Subdivision Certificate** will be issued.

88B Instrument

The Registered Proprietor of the land shall provide an instrument under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act setting out terms of easements and/or restrictions as to user as may be

required by conditions of this consent. Council is to be the party empowered to release, vary or modify those (and only those) easements and/or restrictions required by conditions of this development consent.

Compliance Certificate for Works

The Applicant shall obtain and submit a **Compliance Certificate/s** to certify that all construction works and associated development have been constructed in accordance with this Development Consent, the **Construction Certificate** and all other standards specified in this consent.

Section 50 Certificate

Prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, a certificate of compliance under **Section 50** of the **Hunter Water Act 1991** for this development shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

Advice: Council does not forward notification of the subdivision approval to the Hunter Water Corporation. It is the Applicants responsibility to make all pertinent arrangements with the Hunter Water Corporation.

Mines Subsidence Board Concurrence

The Applicant shall comply with the approval granted by the Mines Subsidence Board for this development. A copy of the Board's approval is attached to this consent.

Energy Australia Requirements

The Applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of Energy Australia.

Application Fees for Required Certificates

The Applicant shall obtain any certificates as required to satisfy the conditions of this Consent.

For Council to process applications for these certificates the following fees would be payable:

Stage 1

Construction Certificate	\$2900	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Compliance Certificate	\$4200	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Subdivision Certificate	\$1995	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)

Stage 2

Construction Certificate	\$3000	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Compliance Certificate	\$4200	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Subdivision Certificate	\$1680	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)

Stage 3

Construction Certificate	\$1100	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Compliance Certificate	\$1600	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Subdivision Certificate	\$1575	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)

Stage 4

Construction Certificate	\$2800	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Compliance Certificate	\$4000	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Subdivision Certificate	\$1785	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Stage 5			
Construction Certificate	\$3300	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Compliance Certificate	\$4700	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)
Subdivision Certificate	\$1785	Plus \$50 Archival Fee	(inc GST)

Applications for these certificates should be lodged on the approved application form and accompanied by the appropriate fee.

Where the development includes construction works valued at \$25,000.00 or more, the applicant must pay the Long Service Levy, as detailed in the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Scheme. The Levy must be paid prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. The Levy may be paid directly to the Long Service Payments Corporation or to Council as agent for the Corporation. The Levy rate is 0.35% of the cost of building and construction works.

The above application fees are subject to change each financial year without notice and confirmation should be obtained from Council prior to the lodgement of any application.

14. Contribution To Provision Of Services (Sec. 94)

- (a) In accordance with the provisions of Section 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the Lake Macquarie Section 94 Contributions Plan No. 1
 – City Wide - Toronto Catchment 2004 (as amended), the monetary contributions in the attached Contributions Schedule shall be paid to Council for the purposes identified in that Schedule.
- (b) From the date this determination is made until payment, the amounts of the contributions payable under the preceding clause will be indexed and adjusted at the close of business on:
 - 14 August,
 - 14 November,
 - 14 February, and
 - 14 May

in each year in accordance with the Consumer Price Index published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics and the provisions of the Lake Macquarie Section 94 Contributions Plan No. 1 – City Wide - Toronto Catchment 2004 (as amended).

The first date for indexation and adjustment shall be the date above which is closest to but follows the date on which the Notice of Determination becomes effective.

- (c) The contributions payable will be the amounts last indexed and adjusted in accordance with Clause (b) above. However, if no amount has been indexed and adjusted because the first date for indexation and adjustment has not arrived, the contributions payable shall be those in clause (a) above.
- (d) The contributions shall be paid to Council as follows:
 - Development applications involving subdivision prior to the release of the Subdivision Certificate.
 - Development applications involving building work prior to the release of the first Construction Certificate.
 - Development applications involving both subdivision and building work prior to the release of the Subdivision Certificate or first Construction Certificate, whichever occurs first.

• Development applications where no Construction Certificate or Subdivision Certificate is required – prior to the release of the development consent or prior to issue of the first Certificate of Occupancy, whichever occurs first.

Please note that should payment be made by cheque or electronic transfer the

release of any documentation will be subject to the clearing of those funds.

Consumer Price Index details are available from Council's Community Planning

Department and the Australian Bureau of Statistics.

A copy of the Lake Macquarie Section 94 Contributions Plan No. 1 – City Wide - Toronto Catchment 2004 (as amended) is available for inspection at the Council's Administrative Building during Council's ordinary office hours.

CONTRIBUTION FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION	FEE AMOUNT
Stage 1	
Toronto Catchment - OSA Land	\$123,236.32
Toronto Catchment - RF - Capital	\$92,351.12
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Capital	\$36,017.95
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Land	\$9,227.05
Toronto Catchment - Management	\$2,800.78

Stage 2

Toronto Catchment - OSA Land	\$115,534.68
Toronto Catchment - RF - Capital	\$86,579.18
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Capital	\$33,766.63
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Land	\$8,650.36
Toronto Catchment - Management	\$2,625.35
Stage 3	
Toronto Catchment - OSA Land	\$107,832.03
Toronto Catchment - RF - Capital	\$80,807.23
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Capital	\$31,515.32
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Land	\$8,073.67
Toronto Catchment - Management	\$2,450.93
Stage 4	
Toronto Catchment - OSA Land	\$123,236.32
Toronto Catchment - RF - Capital	\$92,351.12
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Capital	\$36,017.95
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Land	\$9,227.05
Toronto Catchment - Management	\$2,800.78

Stage 5

Toronto Catchment - OSA Land	\$123,236.32
Toronto Catchment - RF - Capital	\$92,351.12
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Capital	\$36,017.95
Toronto Catchment - CF - West Lake - Land	\$9,227.05
Toronto Catchment - Management	\$2,800.78

Attachments to Conditions of Consent

Attachment 1 – Mine Subsidence Board Approval Letter

Newcastle District Office In reply please send to

Sue Delves (02) 4908 4364

FN95-00560L0 Our reference

237938 Your reference:

Contact

ADW JOHNSON UNIT 7 335 HILLSBOROUGH ROAD WARNERS BAY NSW 2282

23 June 2010

Dear Sir or Madam

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION NO. TSUB10-01051L1 LOT 465, 466 & 468 DP 774186 NO 79 MARMONG ST BOORAGUL CREATING: LOTS 101-118, 201-215, 301-314, 401-416 & 501-517

g1A

The Mine Subsidence Board has granted its approval for this subdivision, subject to:

- the number, size and boundaries of lots being substantially as shown on the (a) approved plan, and
- (b) notification being made to the Board of any changes to lot numbering and of the registered DP number.

The Mine Subsidence Board's approval is required for the erection of all improvements.

As a guide to persons intending to erect improvements on this property, the Board has adopted the following surface development guidelines subject to them being erected on reinforced concrete footings and/or slabs to comply with AS 2870. The following improvements are limited to a maximum length of 30 metres.

- Single or two storey timber or steel framed improvements clad with 1. weatherboards or other similar materials.
- 2. Single or two storey brick veneer improvements.
- Full masonry and other types of improvements will be considered for this 3. property under the Board's 'Graduated Guidelines for Residential Construction'. The improvements will be subject to length restriction and may require engineering design. Details of the requirements may be obtained from the Board's technical staff.





Ground Floor NSW Government Offices 117 Bull Street Newcastle West 2302 PO Box 488G Newcastle 2300 Telephone: (02) 4908 4300 Facsimile: (02) 4929 1032 **DX 4322 Newcastle West**

100 Argyle Street Picton 2571 PO Box 40 Picton 2571 Telephene: (02) 4677 1967 Facsimile: (02) 4677 2040 DX 25053 Fictor

he Central Business Cen Unit 6, 1 Pitt Street Singleton 2330 PO Box 524 Singleton 2330 Telephone: (02) 6572 4344 Facsimile: 002) 6572 4504

Suite 3 Feldwin Court 30 Hely Street Wyong 2259 PO Box 157 Wyong 2259 Telephone: (02) 4352 1646 Facsimile: 402) 4352 1757 DX 7317 Wyong

PO Box 489G Newcastle 2300 Telephone: (02) 4908 4395 Facsimile: K021 4929 1032



File No: FN95-00560L0

Architectural plans submitted to the Mine Subsidence Doard for approval must show the location and detailing of articulation/control joints in brickwork to comply with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia and best building practices.

This approval is valid for two (2) years from the date of this letter.

During planning and design of proposed improvements, applicants should consult with our staff.

Yours faithfully

S Delo

S Delves for Phil Alexander <u>District Manager</u>

\$ 8 (Auto) Apr 2008

Attachment 2 – NSW Rural Fire Service Bush Fire Safety Authority

All communications to be addressed to:

Headquarters 15 Carter Street Lidcombe NSW 2141 Headquarters Locked Bag 17 Granville NSW 2142

Telephone: 8741 5175 Facsimile: 8741 5433 e-mail: development.assessment@rfs.nsw.gov.au

The General Manager Lake Macquarie City Council Box 1906 Hunter Reg Mail Ctr NSW 2310

Your Ref: DA/771/2010 Our Ref: D10/1138 DA10070270575 MM

ATTENTION: Development Assessment & Compliance Department 27 July 2010

Dear Sir / Madam

Integrated Development for 468, 466 & 465//774186 79 Marmong St, Quigley Grave,24 Park Pde & 15 Denman Way Booragul 2284

I refer to your letter dated 25 June 2010 seeking general terms of approval for the above Integrated Development in accordance with Section 91 of the 'Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979'.

This response is to be deemed a bush fire safety authority as required under section 100B of the 'Rural Fires Act 1997' and is issued subject to the following numbered conditions:

Water and Utilities

The intent of measures is to provide adequate services of water for the protection of buildings during and after the passage of a bush fire, and to locate gas and electricity so as not to contribute to the risk of fire to a building.

 Water, electricity and gas are to comply with section 4.1.3 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.

Access

The intent of measures for public roads is to provide safe operational access to structures and water supply for emergency services, while residents are seeking to evacuate from an area.

 Public road access shall comply with section 4.1.3 (1) of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.

General Advice - consent authority to note

Page 1 of 2

This approval is for the subdivision of the land only. Any further development application for class 1,2 & 3 buildings as identified by the 'Building Code of Australia' may be subject to separate application under section 79BA of the EP & A Act and address the requirements of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.

For any queries regarding this correspondence please contact Michael Murrell on 8741 5175.

Yours sincerely

Corey Shackleton A/Team Leader Development Assessment and Planning

The RFS has made getting information easier. For general information on 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection, 2006', visit the RFS web page at <u>www.rfs.nsw.qov.au</u> and search under 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection, 2006'.

Page 2 of 2

Attachment 3 – General Terms of Approval NSW Office of Water

	RECEIVED
Office	2 2 JUL 2010
NSW of Water	LAKE MACQUARIE
GUERNMENT I OT FIGURE	CITY COUNCIL
The General Manager Lake Macquarie City Council	Contact: Algis Sutas Phone: 02 4348 5014
Box 1906	Fax: 02.4348.5012 Email: algis.sutas@water.nsw.gov.au
Hunter Reg Mail Ctr NSW 2310	Our ref: 20 ERM2010/0718 Our file:
	Your ref: DA/771/2010
Attention: Development Assessment & Compliance Depart	rtment 20 July 2010
Dear Sir/Madam	
Re: Integrated Development Referral – General Terr Residential Subdivision, 79 Marmong Street, 24 Booragul NSW 2284, Lot 465, 466 & 468 DP 774	4 Park Parade, 15 Denman Way,
I refer to your recent letter regarding an Integrated Develo the subject property. Attached, please find the NSW Offic Approval (GTA) for 'works' requiring a Controlled Activity A Management Act 2000 (WMA), as detailed in the subject I	e of Water's General Terms of Approval under the Water
Please note Council's statutory obligations under section s and Assessment Act, 1979 (EPAA) which requires a consi be consistent with the GTA proposed to be granted by the	ent, granted by a consent authority, to
If the proposed development is approved by Council, the t these GTA be included (in their entirety) in Council's devel the following:	NSW Office of Water requests that lopment consent. Please also note
 The NSW Office of Water should be notified if any plan these amendments significantly change the proposed 'works' on waterfront land (ie in or within 40 metres fro watercourse, foreshore, or lake). Once notified, the Na amended plans require review or variation/s to the GT the proposed 'works' are part of Council's proposed co not appear in the original documentation. 	development or result in additional om top of highest bank of a SW Office of Water will ascertain if the A. This requirement applies even if
 The NSW Office of Water should be notified if Council consent conditions. Failure to notify may render the 	
The NSW Office of Water requests notification of any	legal challenge to the consent.
Under Section 91A(6) of the EPAA, Council must provide of any determination/s including refusals.	the NSW Office of Water with a copy
As a controlled activity (ie the 'works') cannot commence Controlled Activity Approval, the NSW Office of Water reo be included in the development consent:	before the applicant obtains a commends that the following condition
"The Construction Certificate will not be issued over Controlled Activity Approval until a copy of the Appro Council".	any part of the site requiring a oval has been provided to

www.water.nsw.gov.au | NSW Office of Water is a separate office within the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water Level 3, 26 Honeysuckle Drive Newcastle, 2300, PO Box 2213 DANGAR NSW 2309 Australia | ABN 47 661 556 763

"The Construction Certificate will not be issued over any part of the site requiring a Controlled Activity Approval until a copy of the Approval has been provided to Council".

The attached GTA are not the Controlled Activity Approval. The applicant must apply (to the NSW Office of Water) for a Controlled Activity Approval after consent has been issued by Council but before the commencement of any 'works'.

Finalisation of a Controlled Activity Approval can take up to 8 weeks from the date the NSW Office of Water receives all documentation (to its satisfaction). Applicants must complete and submit (to the undersigned) an application form together with any required plans, documents, the appropriate fee and security (ie bond, if applicable) and proof of Council's development consent.

Application forms for the Controlled Activity Approval are available from the undersigned or from the NSW Office of Water's website

http://www.water.nsw.gov.au/Water-Licensing/Approvals/Controlled-activities/default.aspx

The NSW Office of Water requests that Council provide a copy of this letter to the applicant.

Yours Sincerely

.*

fengel for

Algis Sutas Senior Licensing Officer NSW Office of Water Gosford

www.water.nsw.gov.au I NSW Office of Water is a separate office within the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water Level 3, 26 Honeysuckle Drive Newcastle, 2300, PO Box 2213 DANGAR NSW 2309 Australia I ABN 47 661 556 763



..

٠

General Terms of Approval – for works requiring a Controlled Activity Approval under the Water Management Act 2000

Our Refere	ence	20 ERM2010/0718	File No:	
Site Addre	SS	79 Marmong Street, 24 Park 2284 Lot 465 & 468 DP 77418	Parade, 15 Denman Wa 36	ay, Booragul NSW
DA Numbe	er	DA/771/2010		
LGA. Lake Macquarie City Council				
Number	Condition			
Plans, star	dards and guidel	ines		
1		Terms of Approval (GTA) only appl documentation relating to DA/771/2		
		nent of Environmental Effects for P , Marmong Steet, Booragul. Prepar		
	If the proposed	ts or modifications to the proposed controlled activities are amended o my variations to these GTA will be	r modified the NSW Office	
2	must obtain a C Office of Water.	mencement of any controlled activi ontrolled Activity Approval (CAA) u Waterfront land for the purposes o bank or shore of the riveridentified	nder the Water Manageme f this DA is land and mater	ent Act from the NSW
3	The consent hol	der must prepare or commission th	e preparation of:	
	(i) Erosio	n and Sediment Control Plan		
	(ii) Soil ar	nd Water Management Plan		
4	All plans must be prepared by a suitably qualified person and submitted to the NSW Office of Wate approval prior to any controlled activity commencing. The following plans must be prepared in accordance with the NSW Office of Water guidelines located at www.dwe.nsw.gov.au/water_trade/rights_controlled.shtml			
	(i) Riparia	an Corridors		
	(ii) Outlet	structures		
5	construct and/or	der must (i) carry out any controlle implement any controlled activity to sional and (iii) when required, provi	by or under the direct supe	rvision of a suitably
Rehabilitat	ion and maintena	nce		
6	The consent holder must carry out a maintenance period of one (1) year after practical completion of all controlled activities, rehabilitation and vegetation management in accordance with a plan approved by the NSW Office of Water.			
7	The consent holder must reinstate waterfront land affected by the carrying out of any controlled activity			

www.water.nsw.gov.au | NSW Office of Water is a separate office within the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water Level 3, 26 Honeysuckie Drive Newcastle, 2300, PO Box 2213 DANGAR NSW 2309 Australia | ABN 47 661 556 763

Our Refe	rence	20 ERM2010/0718	File No:	
Site Addr	ess	79 Marmong Street, 24 Park 2284 Lot 465 & 468 DP 7741	Parade, 15 Denman W 86	ay, Booragul NSW
DA Numb	er	DA/771/2010		
LGA Lake Macquarie City Council				
Number	Condition			
	in accordance	e with a plan or design approved by t	he NSW Office of Water.	
Reporting	requirements			
8	The consent l performance required.	holder must use a suitably qualified p of works, rehabilitation and maintena	erson to monitor the progr nce and report to the NSW	ess, completion, / Office of Water as
Access-w	ays			
9	other non-veh	nolder must not locate ramps, stairs, icular form of access way in a riparia he NSW Office of Water.	access ways, cycle paths, in corridor other than in ac	pedestrian paths or any cordance with a plan
Disposal				
10	wash into the	older must ensure that no materials water body, or (iii) cause damage to ith a plan approved by the NSW Office	river banks; are left on wat	may (i) obstruct flow, (ii) erfront land other than in
Drainage a	nd Stormwater			
11	flood flows to	older is to ensure that all drainage w low flow water level in accordance wi truct the flow of water other than in ac	th a plan approved by the	NSW Office of Water: and
12	The consent holder must stabilise drain discharge points to prevent erosion in accordance with a plan approved by the NSW Office of Water.			
Erosion co	ntrol			
13	The consent holder must establish all erosion and sediment control works and water diversion structures in accordance with a plan approved by the NSW Office of Water. These works and structures must be inspected and maintained throughout the working period and must not be removed until the site has been fully stabilised.			
Excavation				
14	The consent holder must ensure that no excavation is undertaken on waterfront land other than in accordance with a plan approved by the NSW Office of Water.			
15	The consent holder must ensure that any excavation does not result in (i) diversion of any river (ii) bed or bank instability or (iii) damage to native vegetation within the area where a controlled activity has been authorised, other than in accordance with a plan approved by the NSW Office of Water.			

. . · ·

www.wster.nsw.gov.au I NSW Office of Water is a separate office within the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water Level 3, 26 Honeysuckle Drive Newcastle, 2300, PO Box 2213 DANGAR NSW 2309 Australia I ABN 47 661 556 763